Draft HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
August 5, 2008
1:51 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:51:51 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Mary Nel son
Representative Bill Thomas, Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Bryce Edgnon; Representative Wodie Sal non

Representative Davi d Gut t enber g; Representative Kyl e
Johansen; Representative Nancy Dahlstrom Representative
Mar k Neuman; Representative Jay Ranras; Representative Craig
Johnson; Representative Paul Seaton; Representative Anna
Faircl ough; Senator Bert Stedman; Senator Lyman Hoffman;
Senator Donny O son; Senator Johnny Ellis; Senator Joe
Thomas; Senator Kim Elton; Suzanne Arnstrong, Staff,
Representative Kevin Meyer; Chris Poag, Assistant Attorney
Cener al , Department  of Law; Jerry Burnett, D rector,
Division of Adm nistrative Services, Departnent of Revenue;
Jon Sherwood, Director, Ofice of Program Review, Departnment
of Health and Social Services; Ellie Fitzjarrald, Acting
Director, Division of Public Assistance, Departnment of
Heal th and Soci al Services

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Curtis Thayer, ENSTAR
SUVMVARY

HB 4005 An Act anending the power cost equalization
program repealing the exclusion fromeligibility
for power <cost equalization for certain power
projects that take their power from hydroelectric

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



facilities, and anending the definition of
‘eligible electric utility' as it applies to the
power cost equalization program and the grant
program for small power projects for utility
i nprovenents; and providing for an effective date.

HB 2005 was schedul ed but not heard.

CSSB 4002(FIN) am

An Act relating to grants from the renewable
energy grant fund; anmending the bulk fuel bridge
| oan fund and the bulk fuel revolving |oan fund;
amending the power cost equalization program
repealing the exclusion fromeligibility for power
cost equalization for certain power projects that
take their power from hydroelectric facilities,
and anmending the definition of '"eligible electric
utility’ as it applies to the power cost
equal i zation program and the grant program for
small power projects for wutility inprovenments;
relating to est abl i shing a gas pi peline
devel opment fund in the Departnment of Revenue;
establishing the Al aska resource rebate program
and relating to that program relating to heating
assi stance; and providing for an effective date.

HCS CS SB 4002 (FIN) was reported out of Conmittee
with a “do pass” recommendation and with 2 new
fiscal notes by the Departnment of Revenue, 2 new
fiscal notes by the Departnment of Health and
Social Services and 3 new fiscal notes by the
Departnment of Commerce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent .

1: 53: 22 PM
#sb4002
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 4002(FIN) am

An Act relating to grants from the renewabl e energy
grant fund; anending the bulk fuel bridge | oan fund and
the bulk fuel revolving |oan fund; anending the power
cost equalization program repealing the exclusion from
eligibility for power cost equalization for certain
power projects that take their power from hydroelectric
facilities, and amending the definition of 'eligible
electric utility' as it applies to the power cost
equal i zati on program and the grant program for snal
power projects for wutility inprovenents; relating to
establishing a gas pipeline developnment fund in the
Depart ment of Revenue; establishing the Al aska resource
rebate program and relating to that program relating
to heating assistance; and providing for an effective
dat e.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



1: 54: 01 PM

SENATOR LYMAN HOFFMAN, CO CHAI R, SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE,
informed that the Committee was neeting to discuss energy
relief. As energy prices have soared, the l|egislature has
heard concerns from Al askans in every region of the state
As the cost of oil has risen, so have the state’'s coffers.
He di scussed the high price of oil.

He explained that with oil at $130 per barrel the state
receives $15.6 billion dollars on an annual basis. Last
year, the state approached approximately $10 billion. He
suggested that as the state’'s coffers have soared, Al askans
have depleted their savings accounts due to high heating
bills. He attenpted to put everything into perspective. The
call of the special session was in response to high energy
costs.

Senator Hof fman pointed out that the Senate’s package was a
two year plan which allowed Al askans sone “breathing roont
for the next two winters. He stated that the Senate had this
in mnd when working on the legislation. He indicated that
changes occurred along the way while arriving at this
legislation. He indicated that all regions of Alaska were
consi der ed.

1: 58: 49 PM

Senator Hoffman recalled his time as Co-Chair of the House
Finance Conmittee. He acknow edged that there had been
di sagreenent on the Senate side. He contended that when it
came down to a decision on whether to support the
| egislation or not, the consensus was to bring forward an
energy relief package to address needs fromvirtually every
spectrum of the state. He believed that the issue noved the
package forward to the House of Representatives.

2: 00: 38 PM

Senat or Hoffman voiced that “Al aska is awash in noney.” The
state has acconplished many Constitution Budget Reserve
Account (CBR) funds. The account was due $5.2 billion
dollars, and the goal was to reduce the debt by 50 percent
and the amount now due is approximately $300 million. The
state now has $8 billion in savings in the CBR The
Statutory Budget Reserve Account (SPR) has $1 billion. He
elucidated that if the price of oil averaged $110 per barrel
next vyear, it would provide the state approximately $12
billion dollars. The savings would then be $16 billion. He
asserted that the nunbers were “staggering.” He asked *“out
of the 12 billion potential dollars, can a state with a vast
savi ngs assi st the people of Alaska with their energy costs
while giving us an opportunity for a long term sol ution?”

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



2: 03: 25 PM

SENATOR BERT STEDVAN, CO CHAIR, SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE,
addressed the process of determning the energy rebate
| egislation. The issue is the sane; how do people wth fixed
incomes or low to noderate incones afford to heat their
honmes with the high cost of oil?

The Senate Finance Commttee (SFC) was challenged as to how
to deal with the oil issue. The issue was approached from
several angles. The bill in discussion attenpted to set a
price for residential heating. The proposed tine period was
Septenber through March for the next two winters at a cost
of three dollars per gallon. Up to 850 gallons per year
woul d be picked up by the state as a rei nbursenent program
The commttee did not want to give away free fuel, or to set
the price so | ow that people were not conserving, or so high
that there were challenges in heating the residents’ hones.
The concentration is primary residential versus conmerci al
buil dings. He noted that 300 gallons would be allotted per
multiple famly units.

2:07: 13 PM

Senator Stedman pointed out that there are many areas in
S.E. Alaska that heat with diesel fuel along with areas in
the Valley that heat with natural gas. He infornmed that
nearly half of the people in the state use natural gas,
while the other half use oil and electricity. The gas
subsi dy proposed a ceiling of $3 dollars per mllion cubic
feet (ncf) up to about 100 ntf providing a 40% subsidy. The
heating price in the Anchorage area wuld decline
considerably. For those heating wth electricity, the
subsi dy woul d be $.05 cents per kWh for the first 16,100 kW
per nont h.

2: 09: 39 PM

Senator Stedman explained the intent of the bill. He wanted
to ensure that Al askans are able to get through the winter.
He directed comments on the sinplicity of the proposal. The
residents around the state heating with oil would submt
receipts for reinbursenent. The individuals heating wth
natural gas will not need to file for a state rebate. The
residents who heat with oil and electric would be required
to submt receipts to nultiple vendors. He recognized that
many state residents wusing oil and electricity aren't
famliar with the rei nbursenment process. The goal is to nake
it easier for constituents to get reinbursed and take
advant age of this program

2:11: 37 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



Senat or Hof f man addressed the Power Cost Equalization (PCE)
program He clainmed that program was “broken” because the
formula was primarily set up for three dollars per gallon
for electricity generation. The cost of diesel is at six
dollars in many areas of Al aska. The original cap of $.56
therefore required adjustnent. The ceiling of $1.15
reflected this increase in cost. The floor is $.10. The non
PCE individuals woul d receive a reduction of $.05 including
Fai r banks, Val dez and Kodi ak. The program would not expand
beyond the 500 kWh per nonth. The proposal would repair the
PCE program and reflect the high cost of energy generation.

2:13: 57 PM

Senator Stedman conmmented on issues in a regional area. In
Sout heast Al aska, many communities are on hydroelectric
power, which helps to lower the cost of fuel. There is a
transition fromhome heating oil to electric, which is good.
The challenge is to expand the hydroelectric. He recounted
that there were 100 people in Wangell waiting to have their
el ectric baseboards installed. He explained the chall enge of
not overwhel m ng the system as peopl e abandon hone boil ers.
The conmponents of the bill have taken into account al
regions of the state.

2:15:49 PM

Senator Hoffman addressed the costs. The conponents
currently in legislation equal approximately $440 mllion.
After funding the program $13.2 nillion dollars remain. The
package is expensive, however |ooking at the potential
revenue; it is not out of reason. The savings should be
passed on when Al askans are depleting their saving accounts.
The state residents need relief now in order to create a
| ong-term solution to energy?

2:17: 34 PM

Co- Chair Meyer asked why in the Senate version, commerci al
had not been included in PCE. Senator Hoffman wanted to | ook
at the existing program and | ook at expansion during the
| ong-term phase. He listed the communities that were added.
It was a judgnment call not to expand the program from the
current vision. He suggested the expansion of the program
allowed for a long term sol ution.

2:19: 33 PM

Co-Chair Meyer comented on the separate directions the
bodi es’ had taken on honme heating. He renmenbered that both
he and Senator Hoffrman agreed that the Low Incone Hone
Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) was the best approach.
He supported that program He asked why the Senate had
abandoned the approach that hel ped everyone regardless of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



heating nethod. He maintained that LIHEAP provides nore
control and refrains from discrimnating against different
heating nethods. He expressed concerns about the Senate
version of the bill. He wondered how the “word would get
out” about the Senate’s proposed program He questioned the
ability to ensure that the dealers did not mark up the cost
of fuel knowing that the state would cover anything over
three dollars.

2:21: 15 PM

Senator Hoffman stated that the three dollars was only for
the first 850 gallons; above that, residents pay the full
anount. The program includes the seven nonths of wnter
only. During the rest of the year, the comunities wll pay
full price. The program for electricity, natural gas, and
for diesel fuel is being treated simlarly. The goal was to
provide relief on a limted basis to all Al askans.

He argued that nmany people in rural Alaska are living on
fixed incones. For those Al askans to absorb the rising costs
woul d nean spendi ng 40 percent of their disposable incone on
energy expenses. Energy costs are in the neighborhood of
five percent of disposable incone for Anchorage. The goal is
to give energy relief to all Al askans. He nmaintained that
this is a limted relief program and covers a portion of
heating costs for the winter nonths. Al areas of the state
should get their energy costs covered. He opined that the
rural areas have considerably higher heating costs than
those in the rest of Al aska.

2:26: 14 PM

Co-Chair Meyer stated that there was potential to argue the
different nmethods for the “rest of the day.” The Senate
version had the resource rebate at $500 per person; the
House version at $1200 per per son. The Governor’s
recomendation was to issue a resource rebate allow ng
constituents to decide how the noney would best be spent.
Co- Chair Meyer asked why the Senate had chosen $500 for a
resource rebate. Senator Hoffrman answered that the intention
was for a long term solution, so allowing for a two year
plan would allow the necessary “breathing roonf to create
that | ong term sol ution.

2:28: 14 PM

Co-Chair Hoffrman stated that it was critical that a two year
solution be created for the problem He cited that the
Per manent Fund Di vi dend (PFD) woul d be about $2000 per year.
The dividend portion was not renoved from the package. He
stressed that the crucial issue was the resolution of the
energy crisis.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



2:29:48 PM

Co-Chair Stednman agreed with Co-Chair Hoffman. He stated
that the concentration on the Senate side was to deliver
relief to all of Alaskans while buying tine for the |ong
term energy plan. There is a section of the bill from Page
10, Line 30 to Page 11, Line 6 that prohibits distributors
from artificially inflating prices as a result of the
program This provides a nechanismto deal w th unscrupul ous
mer chant s.

2:32: 11 PM

Co- Chair Meyer asked if the $500 rebate was intended to help
commuters in the valley pay for the high cost of gas. He
asked Co-Chair Hoffrman to discuss the Senate’s disagreenent
with the notor fuel tax suspension. Co-Chair Hoffnman
answered that despite the tax suspension, he still had to
pay 120 dollars per fill up. He said that the plan did not
offer a significant reduction in the cost of gas, when sone
Al askans |ike hinself are paying six dollars per gallon. He
wonder ed about the nessage that a fuel tax suspension would
send to the rest of the nation, when Al aska already had the
| owest gas tax in the nation at $.08 per gall on.

2: 33:45 PM

Co-Chair Meyer replied that the basic five points from the
House Finance Commttee (HFC) had been discussed. He said
the bul k fuel funds were agreed upon. The last topic that he
wanted to discuss was the issue of electric heating relief.

Co-Chair Stedman said that the focal point of this program
was honme heating fuel. He elaborated that the price of oil
was unstable conpared to natural gas and electricity, which
are regulated. Electric nethods of heating are a small
conponent. The home owner heating with electricity does not
get help from the state. In discussing those who use
electricity, he said it had been decided to expand the $.05
cost per kWh beyond 500 kWh per nonth up to 2300 per nonth.
This plan would allow an offset of hone heating for those
who heat with electricity and thereby cover all nethods of
heating across the state.

2:36: 21 PM

Co- Chair Meyer questioned how the Senate canme up with the
$.05 and the anmount of kWh. Co-Chair Stednan stated that the
nunber was $4.3 nillion for the electric conponent and that
the amount was snmall conpared with $266 mllion for oil
relief and $80 mllion for natural gas. He said this was an
effort to create a balance. He enthused that there was
sonmething in the bill for everyone to like. He expressed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



ent husi asm at the possible changes that the HFC woul d make
to the Senate’s wor kmanshi p.

Co- Chair Meyer requested an estimate of the cost of the fuel
rebat e program

2: 38: 36 PM

Co-Chair Stedman estimated $535 nmillion for two years. Co-
Chair Meyer requested the admnistrative costs. Co-Chair
St edman answered approximately $10 mllion.

Co- Chair Meyer questioned why the |egislature would choose
to spend on the program and not distribute the noney
directly to residents through the resource rebate. Co-Chair
Hof f man said he thought it would be nore cost effective to
et private enterprise distribute the funds.

Co- Chair Meyer asked if Co-Chair Hoffrman believed that this
was really a two year program Co-Chair Hoffman answered
that the program would sunset in tw years and if it was
successful then Co-Chair Myer's question was valid. He
predicted that as long term solutions are devel oped, the
program coul d becone part of the | ong range plan for Al aska.
He explained that the beauty of this program is if the
prices go down, the cost to the state would go down.

2:41:44 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze spoke to the inefficiency of enbedding
entitlement prograns. He stated that he was not certain of
the ram fications. He supported refraining fromworking in a
rushed environnent.

Representative Nelson said she was very excited about the
Senate’ s approach of buying down 40 percent of a household's
heati ng cost. She spoke of a “high energy offset fund” and
the ability to buy down a portion of Alaskans’ cost wth
royalty oil. She said that this program would couple nicely
with the state match for the Low Incone Hone Energy
Assi stance Program (LIHEAP). She asked if that was the
under standing of the Senate as well.

Co-Chair Hoffman replied that the Senate had not observed
that detail, but it did make sense. The buy down progranis
intention was to get a broader brush of assistance relief to
Al askans and that was the primary notivation behind the
Senat e’ s appr oach.

Representative Gara recalled that he had not seen a pure and
equi tabl e plan cone out of the Governors Ofice, the House,
or the Senate. He observed that the House was |ooking at a
bi gger rebate, while the Senate was |ooking to bring fuel
help to people with higher fuel costs.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



2:46: 48 PM

Representative Gara stated that he did not see that any plan
was better or worse and he hoped that the committee could
make sonme headway in narrowing the gap between the two
pl ans.

Representative Gara asked if both the House and Senate
provi si ons on Power Cost Equalization (PCE) have a plan for
.05 a kWh subsidy. He objected to this plan for Anchorage
where electricity costs are low. He asserted that he would
prefer have the noney go into the rebate instead.

Representative Gara requested nore information about the

fuel subsidy portion of the Senate bill. He asked how this
subsidy wll be admnistered and whether or not it is
wor kabl e.

Co- Chair Hof fman expl ained that the Senate did struggle with
the issue initially. First they considered buying down the
bulk plant price, which created many conplexities. The
conclusion was that having a rebate program at the
residential |evel where the customer would present a slip to
the state would work best. The Al aska Energy Authority (AEA)
would then <create the paperwork to meke it easy. He
suggested that if a person was paying high prices to heat
their hones, and did not have the noney, they would take the
initiative to get the rebate. Southeast has much |ess
expensive rates for fuel. In Anchorage, the offset wll be
taken care of at the distributor |evel.

2:52: 37 PM

Representative Gara asked for the difference between the
total cost of PCE in both the House and Senate versions. Co-
Chair Hoffman replied that the nunbers in the House were
$124 mllion and those in the Senate were $169 million. The
nunbers differed because the population nunbers were
different. Co-Chair Meyer corrected that the nunber was $144
mllion for the House proposal due to the inclusion of
commer ci al custoners.

2:54: 22 PM

Representative Gara asked if the amunt of the fuel cost
reduction portion was $530 nmillion dollars. Senator Stednman
replied that the exact nunber was $533 million for the two
year program Representative Gara clarified $270 mllion per
year. Senator Stedman pointed out the issue with oil is that
the residential custoner has to send in a rebate slip to get
rei moursed. Representative Gara believed that there is
benefit to an extended plan.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



2:55:41 PM

Representative Hawker described a point of |egislative
direction for the House versus the Senate. The house is
headed down a sinple path while the Senate has attenpted to
craft an energy policy into the legislation. He believed
that crafting energy policy is the correct nove. He wanted
to know that the outconme woul d be beneficial. He pointed out
that when making such a large change the unintended
consequences are sonetinmes |large. He stressed his areas of
concern.

H's first concern was the energy relief package broken down
between single famly residences and nmulti fam |y building.
He asked for the definitions of a “nmulti-unit structure” as
opposed to a “single famly building”.

2:58: 44 PM

Senator Stedman responded that the concept of both terns is
the sanme; the target is the primary resident. The state can
use assistance to clean up and work on sone of the | anguage.
The time franme is short during special sessions to address
such large policy dilemmas. The state can nove forward and
address the | anguage i ssues because winter is com ng soon.

3:00: 01 PM

Co- Chair Hof fman poi nted out those concerns with a one term
solution to get residents through the followng wnter. He
wanted it to be addressed here and now, enabling the
| egislature to work on long range energy relief. He opined
that with the dividend program it would be difficult to get
21 votes. The Senate plan received 14 votes. He specul ated
that due to the absence of tw senators this special
session, 16 votes m ght have been recieved. Because the HFC
was noving in a different direction it does not nean that
t he body woul d concur. The Senate is already half way there.
There are only two days left to acconplish the energy relief
t hat Al askans need.

3:02:10 PM

Co-Chair Stedman stated that gas and electric typically have
multi meters. There have been discussions dealing with the
multi units versus single heating units, which are probably
reflected by the |anguage.

3:03: 08 PM
Representative Hawker illustrated concerns about the
conplexity of the bill before the Commttee. He shared

another particular provision on Page 10 stating that a
| andl ord receiving beneficial paynments shall pass on the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



savings by lowering the anmpbunt of rent for the tenant. He
wonder ed about increasing the costs for |andlords who have
been absorbing high costs for the last couple of years. He
opi ned that the legislation “would conpound the sin against
the landlord.”

3:04:46 PM

Co-Chair Hof fman conmented on inproving the current system
He opined that the issue did not receive the vetting that it
required. He did believe that there are areas where
i mprovenment was necessary.

Representati ve Hawker worried about the list of concerns
with the proposed |egislation. He identified another
approach including the need for the program to extend two
years. He observed that one year ago, oil was $70 dollars a
barrel where now it is $140 dollar a barrel. The price is
declining as well as wunpredictable. Additionally, if the
price trend continues, the cost could decline drastically.
He suggested that the state mght better inplenent for one
year only.

3:08: 28 PM

Co-Chair Hoffman agreed that there is a large variable in
the increased costs of oil prices. The beauty of the plan is
if the price of oil goes down, the cost to the state of
Al aska goes down. The senate plan protects the state.

3:10:16 PM

Representati ve Hawker felt the proposal was reactive; it is
a policy based approach. He asked the tax consequences on
the beneficiaries. He asked who would be responsible for
reporting that taxable incone as part of the W2 1099
process. Co-Chair Stedman hoped that l|egislators could
determ ne those nunbers. He opined that the structure of the
pl an renoved the risk of tax inplication.

3:11: 51 PM

Representative Thomas noted concern about urban and rura
divide. He opined that paying over three dollars m ght
create a rural-rural divide. He provided an exanple. He
asked why the state does not treat everyone in the rura
communities equally where the fuel issue is concerned.

Senat or Hof f man conmented that the proposed plan attenpts to
treat everyone equally. He observed that the Senate
considered the volatile price of oil. Determning the price
of oil is only a calculation. Until the price of oil reaches
three dollars, it treats everybody equally. If the cost of
oil increases, the energy relief will increase and the state

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



will receive nore revenue. He stressed that the state of
Al aska wi ns under the proposed scenario. He nmaintained that
“for the first 850 gallons, everyone is treated equal.” The
state can depend upon the plan for the next two years. There
are provisions to protect the state on the |low end and on
t he hi gh end.

3:16: 08 PM

Representative Thomas pointed out that the cost of diese
varies elsewhere. He warned about the rural/rural divide.
He did not think the proposal was fair.

Co-Chair Hoffman recalled the argument when PCE was first
i ntroduced. The problem then was achieving equalization. If
a certain area has nore consunption, then they end up payi ng
nore. There is efficiency built in. The question remains
about the inportance of the equalization of energy. The
senate plan attenpts to acconplish this equalization

Representative Thomas argued that the plan did not produce
equal i ty.

3:19:35 PM

Representati ve Thomas referenced PCE and asked if Fairbanks
fell under the plan. Co-Chair Hoffman replied that Fairbanks
woul d under the proposed bill.

Representative Thomas asked about the $.05 subsidy that was
going to help comunities. He asked if this would include
commer ci al properti es. Co- Chai r Hof fman replied that
residential properties were included but commercial users
were not .

3:20:41 PM

Representative Thomas noted that community facilities do not
have as nmuch inpact wunless you add the comercial
properties. Co-Chair Hoffman explained that the |egislation
was attenpting to allow the new PCE custoners to have
community facilities. The goal is to keep parity with the
program

Representative Thomas noted that if they stray froma fixed
amount, his constituents |ose. He encouraged increasing the
Per manent Fund Divi dend (PFD) i nstead.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that Fairbanks 1is «currently not
included in PCE, but the Senate's bill does include them

Representative Thomas pointed out that the commerci al
properties would not get the sane rate.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



Representative Kelly agreed that in the short term the
state can afford this program He agreed that the need for
the program exi sted. But the deeper question is whether the
| egislature should do this? In the past, there was a
tremendous price difference between fuel purchased in Al aska
and that purchased in the Lower 48. He said that this is no
| onger the case, now fuel is conpetitively priced in Al aska.
This issue bothers him He opined that today’'s children
recei ve many benefits, which conprom ses their self-reliance

and character. In a state already extrenmely dependent on
government, this could be considered a sad day in Al askan
history if we adopt the Senate bill. He doesn’t buy the

argunent that the resources belong to the people of Al aska;
that’s not the way the constitution was set up. He
guestioned whether it was wise to put youth on the dole as
soon as they matriculate and believed this is partly what
the struggle between the two approaches is about. He
wondered about the road to Nonme or Ranpart or Cordova, or
the intertie to Genallen, or the dam at Susitna, all of
whi ch have been tal ked about for decades. He stated that
“this question of whether or not the state should do this is
far bigger than the other two reasons cited for instituting
this plan.” In his district, the average incone had slipped
to $34,000 and is now 48" in the nation. He expressed shane
about sone of the things the state has not done.

3:31: 02 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that Representative Kelly's question
was whet her this program woul d work.

Co-Chair Hoffman explained that this is a tenporary fix to
provi de enough tine to look at renewable and alternative
ener gy devel opments. A road to Nonme would certainly be nice,
but if people can't afford to live there, that road will not

do well. Let this program sunset after two years, and then
the legislature can reevaluate. He asserted that “if the
energy issue is not addressed, then we will not be able to

live in this state.”

Representative Kelly wapped up by saying as we | ook forward
and avoid handing out nore subsidies, there is going to be
nore pressure from the constituents to get the roads
constructed. He wanted to raise the |evel of “how ing” about
the |l ack of real progress.

3:35:23 PM

Representative Gara noted that he agreed with some of what
Representative Kelly said. He nentioned sone areas of the
state where these handouts are used for the necessities of
life, and where survival is at stake. There is sonme effort
on the Senate side to steer nore noney to those needy
people. He was l|ooking at an exit strategy for this

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



| egislation before the session ends. There were bills on
each extrene of this issue. The House bill fell sonmewhere in
the mddle. He asserted that his constituents don't really
need the electric subsidy. He proposed taking $335 million
dollars out of the heating subsidy and allocating an extra
$185 nmillion to the resource rebate and $20 mllion into
LIHEAP. If there is not conprom se, both sides will go hone
saying their idea was |Dbetter, but nothing wll be
acconpl i shed. He encouraged novenent toward the center

Representative Gara described the different tiers of energy
costs in the state: the bush, the Anchorage area, and
Fai rbanks. He wondered what the Fairbanks heating costs
| ooked |i ke and how this subsidy would affect those costs.

Co-Chair Stedman did not have those nunbers in front of him
He nentioned an energy rally in Fairbanks where nearly 1000
citizens attended due to concerns about heating issues. He
noted that Southeast Alaska also has its energy cost
concerns. Representative Gara asked for nore specifics about
Sout heast .

Co-Chair Stedman noted that nost hones are heated by diesel-
fired boilers, even new ones. It was only in the |ast couple
of years that oil has becone nore expensive than electricity
for heat. His concern is that there are many senior citizens
and even mddle inconme residents that are having trouble
heating. It is one of the warnest areas of the state, but
despite that there are chall enges.

3:44: 42 PM

Representative Kelly answered the previous question
regardi ng Fairbanks and the subsidy noting that the anount
woul d be $65 on the bill for the 500 kWh. He added that if
individuals in South East Alaska wth hydro power are
putting resistance heaters in their hones, this will burn up
t he hydro capacity.

Co-Chair Stedman attenpted to address the concern. The hydro
can not be expanded. Not all of the dams were built under
the four dam pool. Representative Kelly reiterated the
concern.

3:47: 34 PM

Representative Nelson noted appreciation on the plan
presented by the Senate Finance Conmittee, a conprehensive
plan to address the serious needs of all Al askans.

3:49:43 PM

CURTI S THAYER, ENSTAR testified via tel econference. He noted
concern with how the bill is witten to admnister the
program He observed that, as the bill was witten, Enstar

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



does not have the systemin place to do the credit and pass
billing. He noted that they are regulated by the Regul atory
Conmi ssion of Al aska and wanted to ease the adm nistering of
the programto half of the state’'s popul ation.

Representative Hawker referenced the draft [|anguage and
asked if that |anguage was the focus of the concern. He
asked for the location of that |anguage.

M. Thayer informed that Section 15, Line 28, was the area
of concern. This includes the definition of a nulti-unit
structure. Representative Hawker asked if +the |anguage
identified the problem M. Thayer said that it does. He
expl ained that since Enstar is regulated by the regul atory
comm ssion of Alaska, they were attenpting to nodify the
| anguage to fit wthin the tariff. He opined that the
sinmpl est solution would be to take a credit fromthe state
against what the forecast is for the custonmer class and
identify it on the bill.

Representative Hawker hoped to see the bill nobve from
Commttee today. M. Thayer revealed that there were three
attorneys avail able to make the necessary | anguage changes.

3:54:46 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if an individual needed to request
a rate reduction of the Regulatory Conmm ssion of Al aska. He
doubted it would be a problem for the Regul atory Comm ssion
of Alaska. Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if this would be an
expedited ruling. M. Thayer stated that he would request
one.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked what expedited neans. M. Thayer
replied before Septenber 1%.

3: 55: 55 PM

Representative Gara asked if Enstar had the proposed
| anguage. M. Thayer stated that they did have the draft.
The definition of nmulti wunit structure is different for
Enstar than it had been defined in the bill. He explained
that it would be difficult to identify how many nulti-unit
structures exi st behind one neter.

Representative Gara thought that if the need for a certain
nunber of days was present the commttee could put it in the
bill. M. Thayer replied that this mght be a possible
appr oach.

3:57: 01 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



Representative Gara asked iif the draft |anguage was
available for the conmttee. M. Thayer answered that he
could present the draft |anguage in half an hour.

AT EASE: 3:58: 36 PM
RECONVENE: 4: 48: 42 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze MOVED to ADOPT work draft #25-GS54057\R
Cook, 8/5/08, as the version of the bill before the
Comm ttee. Representative Gara OBJECTED

SUZANNE  ARMSTRONG, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE KEVIN MEYER,
expl ained that the only difference between the current and
former CS was that this was a Senate bill.

Representative Hawker explained that what was fornerly
Section 3 had been relocated to Section 5.

4:50: 30 PM

Co- Chair Meyer commented on sone of the differences between
the Senate and the House version of the bill. He recommended
not begi nni ng any new prograns.

He t hought that the adm nistration had the sane problens. He
retained the idea of letting the people determ ne how the
$1200 dollars are to be spent. He added that the fuel tax
will help Al aska residents. He acknow edged that this is a
tenporary solution. The PFD checks wll be expedited
allowing the help to reach people before winter. He proposed
that the legislature take a nore deliberate process next
session to do this correctly. He observed that by next year
there would be feedback from the energy coordinator as to
what direction the state will go in the area of resolving
ener gy needs.

4:54: 44 PM

Representative Gara expressed confusion because a prior
version of the bill had included electrical cost assistance
and fuel assistance to offset high fuel costs for those with
l[imted incones. The Senate added a different bulk fuel
position. He referenced the |lack of heating assistance and
PCE appropriations. He did not understand the | ow cost itens
that would nmeke a big difference to those wth |ower
i ncomes. He expressed confusion regarding the renoval of the
heating and electricity assistance.

Co-Chair Meyer rem nded that the LIHEAP programis still in
exi stence and the noney appropriated for LIHEAP had not yet
gone into effect. He mamintained that LIHEAP will be expanded
this wwnter. He stated that the current PCE programw | be
in place.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



Representati ve Gara  expressed hi s under st andi ng of
Representative Meyer’s comments. He recalled that the prior
bill i ncl uded $20 mllion in addi ti onal LI HEAP
appropriations and additional PCE for the high cost
communities. He warned that many comunities may be left in
the cold. Co-Chair Meyer proposed adding $10 million nore to
LIHEAP and PCE. He maintained that the |larger resource
rebate will help individuals cover the difference on the PCE
if that is how they choose to use the noney.

4:57:42 PM

Representative Crawford added comments for Representative
Joul e indicating that $1200 for a person in Anchorage nakes
a big difference but wuld not go far in the rural
communities. There was legislation that did address those
concerns. He felt the legislature had taken steps backward.
He did not support the proposed bill. He expressed
di sagreenment wth certain aspects of the Senate bill,
al though the version adopted by the Senate was closer to
where he believed the state should nove. He encouraged that
the Conmttee work toward a better conprom se.

4:59:35 PM

Co- Chair Meyer did not know what the correct solution was
He stressed that the proposed draft was a tenporary
sol uti on.

5:00: 00 PM

Representative Nelson noted that when the PCE program was
constructed, the finance commttee could have deenmed it ill
advi sed. The Senate provided a thorough | ook at needs across
the state. There is broad recognition that what the Governor
offered is a starting place, but now the commttee is
reverting back to a very shallow and arbitrary distribution

She stressed that $1200 in one part of Al aska does not neet
needs in the sane way in other parts of Alaska. She
encouraged greater statesmanship. She expressed sadness at
seeing the tine spent in Dboth bodies developing a
del i berative, conprehensive, approach go into the waste can.
She wanted to see substantive changes on the House Fl oor.
She did not support the current version of the bill.

Representative Nelson renmained optimstic that changes can
be made on the House Floor. She did not support the bare-
bones versi on.

5:03: 05 PM

Co-Chair Meyer argued that the Conmttee had put a |lot of
time and effort into the bill. He acknow edged that the
process got diverted. He questioned the subsidy for natural

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



gas, electric, and heating oil. He argued that there are
many unknowns. The Senate had indicated that it could cost
up to $20 million dollars to inplenment progranms that may or
may not work. He reiterated the promse of process in
January to work out a long-term plan along with the hel p of
the energy coordinator. He opined that regardless of an
i ndi vidual’s location $1200 woul d hel p.

5:05:02 PM

Representative Nel son understood that the goal of the Senate
was to buy down heat by 40 percent, whether the energy
source was oil, gas or electricity. She applauded the goa
as a worthy endeavor. She was optimstic that the
Legi sl ature woul d provide neaningful relief to hard pressed
people. The concern about price gouging is meaningful
concern. Only a portion would be covered by the state. She
expressed her support for the Senate plan and proposed that
it be accepted and supported.

5:06: 55 PM

Co- Chair Meyer thought that once regular session resunes,
the | egislature could address revenue sharing to aid in the
heati ng situation.

Representative Nelson asked if it would be appropriate to
give a large sum of noney to the Minicipality of Anchorage
to pay down individual’'s heating bills. Co-Chair Meyer
explained that property taxes pay city governnent. He
understood the received testinony that it would go toward
buyi ng heating fuel. He wanted to be prepared.

Representative Nelson argued that one of the testifiers
addressed the death of a person who died alone due to |ack
of ability to heat his honme. She maintained that nunicipa
assistance is needed, but that does not help individuals
that are cold, hungry, and |iving al one.

5:09: 08 PM

Representative Gara asserted that $250 nmillion dollars of
the resource rebate would equal a check to the federal
governnent. There was past consensus of the commttee to
provide a conbination of a flat check, allow ng urban
individuals with smaller problens to be treated fairly. Al so
i ncluded was heating assistance to those who can barely pay
for food. The previous version contained an extra provision
for those facing the greatest problens. He wanted an
explanation as to why the bill had been changed so
radical ly.

5:11: 07 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



Co- Chair Meyer explained that the House does not work for
the Senate. He hoped to cone forward with a bill simlar to
that of both commttees. The expressed problem was that the
home heating fuel subsidy would not be taxed. The reality
was that it may indeed be taxable. He understood the focus
of the call was to help people who really needed the help.
He disagreed with the creation of any new entitlenent
prograns. He thought that the focus should be for those
that need to heat their hone. Sone of the wealthiest people
in the State will be qualifying for the subsidy, but they
may not receive it because it nust be applied for.

5:13:13 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze observed concerns with the previous House
ver si on. He expressed shock that the $5,000 penalty in
Section 4 had not been renoved. He wanted to be consistent
in his criticisns. He was against enabling a new
bureaucracy. Co-Chair Meyer believed that the penalty was
currently in statute for neglecting to provide nonthly
reports.

5:14:40 PM

Representative Thomas stated that the other version was not
payi ng the people fairly in the rural comunities. He opined
that the state should pay the first three or four dollars
and then have the individuals paid the renmainder. He
stressed that if the conmttee delayed too |long they would
not go to conference. He worried that it mght not happen
at all. He encouraged that the conmttee nove the bill to
t he House Fl oor for discussion purposes.

5:16: 52 PM

Representative Gara W THDREW the OBJECTI ON. He asked about
the location of the final version. Representative Thomas
expl ained that probably the Senate version would not be
adopted and instead would go to conference. He nmaintained
that “the process is not over yet.”

Vice-Chair Stoltze expressed irritation and agreed wth
Representative Thomas referring to the process as fluid.

5:18: 28 PM

Co-Chair Meyer referenced the $5,000 penalty for not
submtting reports in regard to the eight cent tax
suspensi on for notor fuels.

CHRI S POAG ASSI STANT ATTORNEY CGENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
explained that the provision inposes a penalty for
negl ecting to file the tax return. The penalty is not based
on the tax, because there would be no tax. The penalty in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



this provision is up to $5,000 and will require the returns
and the invoices to conply with federal requirenents. The
current fine is different fromwhat is proposed. The penalty
is 5% of the tax for each 30-day tinme period.

5:20: 08 PM

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if there was a standard gui de that
led to the anmpunt of $5000.

M. Poag answered that the anmobunt is consistent with the
civil penalties provided in 4375 for an individual |listed as
a fisheries business license taxpayer who failed to get a
license. The anount is consistent with other civil penalties
on the book for failure to <conmply wth [|icensing
requirenments.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked for affirmation by the departnent
that the level of the fine was proper.

M. Poag explained that the ampunt was up to 5,000 dollars
and there would be an informal appeal process that would

apply.
5:22:14 PM

Representative Kelly asked why the penalty shouldn't be
suspended since the tax woul d be suspended.

M. Poag answered that there was need for an incentive to
encourage suppliers to file their tax returns, which provide
needed information for the Federal H ghway Departnent to
continue eligibility for the Federal H ghway Fund.

Representative Kelly questioned that the reporting is not
related to the tax when there is no tax; instead it is
related to the gallons of fuel.

JERRY  BURNETT, DI RECTOR, DVISION OF ADM NI STRATI VE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, explained that the returns
were needed to record the nunber of gallons of fuel used in
the state of Al aska.

Co-Chair Meyer introduced his conceptual anmendnent, which
changed the plan froma tw year plan to a one year plan, in
an effort to ascertain whether or not constituents are
seeing the eight cent tax suspension passed though.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if it was valid to assune that
bringing it back in one year is consistent wth the
commitnment to address the omibus issue of statew de
concerns.

Co- Chair Meyer affirned.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



5:26:10 PM

MOVED to ADOPT Conceptual Amendnent #1, Page 3, Line 15,
del eting “June 30, 2011”, inserting “August 31, 2009”; Page
3, Line 29, deleting “June 30, 2011” and inserting “August
31, 2009”; Page 3, Line 30, deleting “Septenber 1, 2011” and
inserting “Cctober 1, 2009".

Representati ve Gara expressed concerns about whether the gas
tax should disappear when the price of gas is high and
reinstitute when the price of gas is low instead of
instituting an expiration date.

Co- Chair Meyer expl ai ned that many people were not sure that
t he savi ngs woul d be passed on to the consuner.

Representative Gara preferred avoiding the need to vote on
vari ous el enents each year.

Vice-Chair Stoltze renoved his objection.

Co-Chair Meyer noted no objections and passed conceptual
anmendnent 1.

5:28: 22 PM

Representative Gara offered conceptual anmendnent 2. This
amendnent would return the LIHEAP program assi stance back
into this bill as in version 25-LS1757\E Kane 7/31/08,
Sections 6 and 7.

Co- Chair Meyer OBJECTED

Co-Chair Meyer clarified that those sections appropriated
$10 million to LIHEAP

Representative Gara said the anendnent would include
sections 6 and 7 of the E version of HB4005, except for the
portion stating “the benefit nay not exceed $170,” he woul d
insert “the benefit may not exceed $340.” He stated that the
LI HEAP programis very inportant to | ow incone residents and
this bill should include a provision assisting those who
have a hard tine affording fuel. The hi ghest benefit goes to
the famlies with the nost fragile nenbers, such as seniors
and those with disabilities. He opined that there should be
a portion of this bill that reflects the reality that sone
i ndi vidual s have a nuch nore difficult time paying for the
basi ¢ necessities of life. He pointed out that while $1200
will be a luxury to sone, for others it will barely help put
food on the table.

Co- Chair Meyer reminded the comittee that $10 million had
been passed for LIHEAP during regul ar session.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



Ms. Arnstrong requested clarification that the E version of
the bill adopts a dollar amount of $340.

Representative Gara confirned that was his intention

Co- Chair Meyer asked how nmuch noney woul d be added with this
change.

Ms Arnmstrong estimated that it would add 40 to 42 mllion
dollars to the program

Co-Chair Meyer asked if the original recommendati on was $10
mllion.

Representative Gara said that one quarter of the nopney
appropriated for the resource rebate would go to Al askan’s
who earn over $100 thousand per year. The state wll be
spending over $250 million on famlies that nmake over $100
t housand per year, so $40 nmillion to help people pay for
heat does not seem|like too nuch.

5:32: 55 PM

Representative Kelly noted that a heating program benefiting
sonmeone earning over 100,000 dollars was “out of line.”

Co-Chair Chenault asked about clarifying the point system
up to 35 possible points. If each point were worth 340
dol lars, then that household would be allowed up to $11, 900.

JON SHERWOOD, DI RECTOR, OFFI CE OF PROGRAM REVI EW DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, said that he could not verify
the math but Co-Chair Chenault’s estimation sounded correct.
In the coldest comunities with the nost expensive fuel
there is a limt to the anmpbunt of points that count, so
there can be sone vari ations.

Co- Chair Chenault observed that the conmttee did not know
how many people would apply or qualify for the total points.

Representative Kelly apol ogi zed for his m sspeak about the
$100 t housand, and corrected hinself stating that the nunber
is $50 thousand for the 225 percent.

Representative Gara explained that current LIHEAP program
only applies for 225 percent of the poverty level, which is
roughly $39 thousand.

M. Sherwood read the appropriate statutes regarding incone.
For $225 percent of poverty, the annual income for a fanmly
of three is $49,500 and for a famly of four is $59, 625
gr oss i ncone.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



Co-Chair Meyer acknow edged that the famly would also
recei ve the $1200 resource rebate.

Representative Kelly added that the famly would also
recei ve the PFD

Representative Gara wthdrew the anmendnent and wll
i ntroduce changes on the fl oor.

Vice-Chair Stoltze noted the 100,000 per household was
considered “rich.”

5:37:45 PM

Representative Gara said he never called soneone making
$100, 000 dol l ars per year “rich.”

Vice-Chair Stoltze MOVED that HCS for CSSB4002 as anended be
MOVED out of committee with individual recommendati ons.

Co- Chair Meyer asked whether there were any objections.
Represent ati ve Hawker asked about fiscal notes.

Co-Chair Meyer agreed that fiscal notes were necessary and
noted that the bill noved w thout objections.

5:40: 01 PM

HCS CS SB 4002 (FIN) was reported out of Commttee wth a
“do pass” recomendation and with two new fiscal notes by
the Departnent of Revenue, two new fiscal notes by the
Department of Health and Social Services and three new
fiscal notes by the Departnent of Commerce, Community and
Econom c Devel opnent .

#

ADJ QURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 5:41 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 08/05/08 1:51 P. M



